UMGENI WATER - AMANZI	Supply Chain Management
Document Number:	SCM027
Document Title:	Services Contract
Version:	01
Purpose:	Standard contract for all services

## **PREFACE**

The Standard General Services Contract has been prepared for use by Employers when they engage firms or individuals (Service Providers) for the performance of knowledge-based expertise provided on the basis of trust.

This document is intended to be used with the procurement documents prepared in accordance with the provisions of SANS 10403: Formatting and Compilation of Construction Procurement Documents

# **GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT (SERVICES)**

### **TABLE OF CONTENTS PAGE**

- 1. Definitions
- 2. Interpretation
- 3. General
  - 3.1 Governing law
  - 3.2 Change in legislation
  - 3.3 Language
  - 3.4 Notices
  - 3.5 Location
  - 3.6 Confidentiality
  - 3.7 Variations
  - 3.8 Sole agreement
  - 3.9 Indemnification
  - 3.10 Penalty
  - 3.11 Equipment and materials furnished by the Employer
  - 3.12 Illegal and impossible requirements
  - 3.13 Programme
- 4. Employer's Obligations
  - 4.1 Assistance
  - 4.2 Notification of material change or defect
  - 4.3 Issue of instructions
  - 4.4 Payment of Service Provider
- 5. Service Provider's Obligations
  - 5.1 General
  - 5.2 Exercise of authority
  - 5.3 Designated representative
  - 5.4 Insurances to be taken out by the Service Provider
  - 5.5 Service Provider's actions requiring Employer's prior approval
  - 5.6 Co-operation with Others
  - 5.7 Notice of change by Service Provider
- 6. Conflicts of Interest
  - 6.1 Service Provider not to benefit from commissions, discounts, etc.
  - 6.2 Royalties and the like
  - 6.3 Independence

- 7. Service Provider's Personnel
  - 7.1 General
  - 7.2 Provision of Personnel in terms of a Personnel Schedule
- 8. Commencement, Completion, Modification, Suspension and Termination
  - 8.1 Commencement of Services
  - 8.2 Contract Expiry
  - 8.3 Force Majeure
  - 8.4 Termination
  - 8.5 Modification of Scope of Work
  - 8.6 Rights and liabilities of the Parties
- 9. Ownership of Documents and Copyright
- 10. Succession and assignment
- 11. Subcontracting
- 12. Resolution of Disputes
  - 12.1 Settlement
  - 12.2 Mediation
  - 12.3 Adjudication
  - 12.4 Arbitration
- 13. Liability
  - 13.1 Liability of the Service Provider
  - 13.2 Liability of the Employer
  - 13.3 Compensation
  - 13.4 Duration of Liability
  - 13.5 Limit of Compensation
  - 13.6 Indemnity by the Employer
  - 13.7 Exceptions
- 14. Remuneration and Reimbursement of Service provider
- 15. Amounts due to the employer

**GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT** 

1. DEFINITIONS

In the Contract, the following words and expressions shall have the meanings indicated, except where the context otherwise requires. Defined terms and words are

signified in the text of the Contract by the use of capital initial letters.

**Commencement Date** 

Contract

The Contract signed by the Parties and of which these General Conditions of Contract

form part.

**Contract Data** 

Specific data, which together with these General Conditions of Contract, collectively

describe the risks, liabilities and obligations of the contracting Parties and the

procedures for the administration of the Contract.

**Contract Price** 

The price to be paid for the performance of the Services in accordance with the Pricing

Data.

Day

A calendar day

**Defect** 

A part of the Services, as performed, which does not comply with the requirements of

the Contract.

Deliverable

Any measurable, tangible, verifiable outcome, result or item that must be produced or

completed;

**Employer** 

The contracting party named in the Contract who employs the Service Provider.

## **Force Majeure**

An event which is beyond the reasonable control of a Party and which makes a Party's performance of its obligations under the Contract impossible or so impractical as to be considered impossible under the circumstances.

## **Key Persons**

Persons who are named as such in the Special Conditions of Contract who will be engaged in the performance of the Services.

#### **Others**

Persons or organisations who are not the Employer, the Service Provider or any employee, Subcontractor, or supplier of the Service Provider.

#### **Parties**

The Employer and the Service Provider.

### **Period of Performance**

The period within which the Services are to be performed and completed.

#### Personnel

Persons hired by the Service Provider as employees and assigned to the performance of the Services or any part thereof.

### **Personnel Schedule**

A schedule naming all Personnel and Key Persons.

## **Pricing Data**

Data that establishes the criteria and assumptions that were taken into account when developing the Contract Price and the record of the components that make up the Contract Price.

# Scope of Work

The document which defines the Employer's objectives and requirements and specifies the Services which must, or may, be provided under the Contract.

### Service Provider

The contracting party named in the Special Conditions of Contract who is employed by the Employer to perform the Services described in the Contract, and legal successors to the Service Provider and legally permitted assignees.

### **Services**

The work to be performed by the Service Provider pursuant to the Contract as described in the Scope of Work.

### **Subcontractor**

A person or body corporate who enters into a subcontract with the Service Provider to perform part of the Services.

### 2. INTERPRETATION

- 2.1 Unless inconsistent with the context, an expression which denotes:
- a) any gender includes the other genders;
- b) a natural person includes a juristic person and vice versa;
- c) the singular includes the plural and vice versa.
- 2.2 If there is any conflict between the provisions of these General Conditions of Contract and the Special Conditions of Contract, the provisions of the Special Conditions of Contract shall prevail.
- 2.3 The clause headings shall not limit, alter or affect the meaning of the Contract.

## 3. GENERAL

# 3.1 Governing law

Law governing the Contract shall be the law of the Republic of South Africa.

## 3.2 Change in legislation

If after the commencement of the Contract, the cost or duration of the Services is altered as a result of changes in, or additions to, any statute, regulation or bye-law, or the requirements of any authority having jurisdiction over any matter in respect of the Project, then the Contract Price and time for completion shall be adjusted in order to reflect the impact of those changes, provided that, within 14 Days of first having become aware of the change, the Service

Provider furnished the Employer with detailed justification for the adjustment to the Contract Price or Period of Performance (or both).

## 3.3 Language

- 3.3.1 The language of the Contract and of all communications between the Parties shall be English.
- 3.3.2 All reports, recommendations and reports prepared by the Service Provider under the Contract shall be in English.

#### 3.4 Notices

- 3.4.1 Any notice, request, consent, approvals or other communication made between the Parties pursuant to the Contract shall be in writing and forwarded to the address specified in the Special Conditions of Contract.
- 3.4.2 Such communication shall be deemed to have been made when delivered in person to an authorized representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, or one week after having been sent by registered post, or unless otherwise indicated in the Special Conditions of Contract, when sent by e-mail or facsimile to such Party
- 3.4.3 A Party may change its address for receipt of communications by giving the other Party 30 Days advance notice of such change.

### 3.5 Location

The Services shall be performed at such locations as specified in the Special Conditions of Contract, and where the location of a particular task is not so specified, at such locations as the Employer may approve.

## 3.6 Confidentiality

Both parties shall keep all sensitive information obtained by them in the context of the

Contract confidential and shall not divulge it without the written approval of the other Party.

### 3.7 Variations

- 3.7.1 The Employer may, without changing the objectives or fundamental scope of the Contract, order variations to the Services in writing or may request the Service Provider to submit proposals, including the time and cost implications, for variations to the Services.
- 3.7.2 The reasonable cost of preparation and submission of such proposals and the incorporation into the Contract of any variations to the Services ordered by the Employer, including any change in the Contract Price, shall be agreed between the Service Provider and the Employer.
- 3.7.3 Where a variation is necessitated by default or breach of Contract by the Service Provider, any additional cost attributable to such variation shall be borne by the Service Provider.

### 3.8 Sole agreement

The Contract constitutes the sole agreement between the Parties for the performance of the Services and any representation not contained therein

shall not be of any force or effect. No amendments will be of any force or effect unless reduced to writing and signed by both Parties.

### 3.9 Indemnification

The Service Provider shall, at his own expense, indemnify, protect and defend the Employer, its agents and employees, from and against all actions, claims, losses and damage arising from any negligent act or omission by the Service Provider in the performance of the Services, including any violation of legal provisions, or rights of others, in respect of patents, trade marks and other forms of intellectual property such as copyrights.

### 3.10 Penalty

3.10.1 Subject to the GCC Clause 8.3, if the Service Provider fails to perform the services within the period(s) specified in the contract, the Employer shall, without prejudice to its other remedies under the contract, deduct from the order value as a penalty, a sum calculated on delivered price of the delayed goods or unperformed services using the current prime rate calculated for each day of the delay until actual delivery or performance. The Employer may also consider termination of the contract pursuant to GCC Clause 8.4

#### 3.11 Equipment and materials furnished by the Employer

3.11.1 Equipment and materials made available to the Service Provider by the Employer, or purchased by the Service Provider with funds provided by the Employer for the performance of the Services shall be the property of the Employer and shall be marked accordingly. Upon termination or expiration of the Contract, the Service Provider shall make available to the Employer an inventory of such equipment and materials and shall dispose of them in accordance with the Employer's instructions.

3.11.2 The Service Provider shall, at his own expense, insure the equipment and materials referred to in 3.11.1 for their full replacement value.

Standard Services Contract

## 3.12 Illegal and impossible requirements

The Service Provider shall notify the Employer immediately, on becoming aware that the Contract requires him to undertake anything which is illegal or impossible.

### 3.13 Programme

- 3.13.1 The Service Provider shall, within the time period set out in the Conditions of Contract, submit to the Employer a programme for the performance of the Services which shall, *inter alia*, include:
  - a) the order and timing of operations by the Service Provider and any actions required of the Employer and Others;
  - the dates by which the Service Provider plans to complete work needed to allow the Employer and Others to undertake work required of them; and
  - c) other information as required in terms of the Scope of Work or Special Conditions of Contract.
- 3.13.2 The Employer may, during the course of the Contract, request the Service Provider to amend the programme. Where this is not practicable, the Service Provider shall advise the Employer accordingly and advise him of alternative measures, if any, which might be taken.
- 3.13.3 The Service Provider shall regularly update the programme to reflect actual progress to date and expected future progress.

### 4. EMPLOYER'S OBLIGATIONS

#### 4.1 Assistance

4.1.1 The Employer shall co-operate with the Service Provider and shall not interfere with or obstruct the proper performance of the Services. The Employer shall as soon as practicable:

 a) procure the Service Provider's ready access to premises, or sites, necessary for the performance of the Services;

## 4.2 Notification of material change or defect

The Employer shall immediately advise the Service Provider on becoming aware of:

- a) any matter other than a change in legislation which will materially change, or has changed the Services; or
- b) a material defect or deficiency in the Services.

### 4.3 Issue of instructions

Where the Service Provider is required to administer the work or services of others, or any contract or agreement, on behalf of the Employer, then the Employer shall issue instructions related to such work, services, contract or agreement only through the Service Provider.

## 4.4 Payment of Service Provider

The Employer shall pay the Service Provider the contract price in accordance with the provisions of the contract.

### 5. SERVICE PROVIDER'S OBLIGATIONS

#### 5.1 General

- 5.1.1 The Service Provider shall perform the Services in accordance with the Scope of Work with all reasonable care, diligence and skill in accordance with generally accepted professional techniques and standards.
- 5.1.2 If the Service Provider is a joint venture or consortium of two or more persons, the Service Provider shall designate one person to act as leader with authority to bind the joint venture or consortium. Neither the composition nor the constitution of the joint venture or consortium shall be altered without the prior consent in writing of the Employer, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

## 5.2 Exercise of authority

The Service Provider shall have no authority to relieve others appointed by the Employer to undertake work or services on the contract of any of their duties, obligations, or responsibilities under their respective agreements or contracts, unless expressly authorised by the Employer in response to an application by the Service Provider in writing to do so.

## 5.3 Designated representative

Unless otherwise communicated, the authorised and designated person named in the Special Conditions of Contract has complete authority to receive instructions from and give information to the Employer on behalf of the Service Provider.

### 5.4 Insurances to be taken out by the Service Provider

5.4.1 The Service Provider shall as a minimum and at his own cost take out and maintain in force all such insurances as are stipulated in the Special Conditions of Contract.

5.4.2 The Service Provider shall, at the Employer's request, provide evidence to the Employer showing that the insurance required in terms of Clause 5.4.1 has been taken out and maintained in force.

## 5.5 Service Provider's actions requiring Employer's prior approval

The Service Provider shall obtain the Employer's prior approval in writing before taking, interalia, any of the following actions:

- a) appointing Subcontractors for the performance of any part of the Services,
- appointing Key Persons not listed by name in the Special Conditions of Contract
- (c) any other action that may be specified in the Special Conditions of Contract.

## 5.6 Co-operation with Others

If the Service Provider is required to perform the Services in co-operation with Others he may make recommendations to the Employer in respect of the appointment of such Others. The Service Provider shall, however, only be responsible for his own performance and the performance of Subcontractors unless otherwise provided for.

### 5.7 Notice of change by Service Provider

On becoming aware of any matter which will materially change or has changed the Services, the Service Provider shall within 14 Days thereof give notice to the Employer.

#### 6. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

### 6.1 Service Provider not to benefit from commissions, discounts, etc.

The remuneration of the Service Provider under the Contract shall constitute the Service Provider's sole remuneration in connection with the Contract, or the Services, and the Service Provider shall not accept for his own benefit any trade commission, discount, or similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to the Contract, or in the discharge of his obligations under the Contract, and shall use his best efforts to ensure that the Personnel, any Subcontractors, and agents of either of them shall, similarly, not receive any additional remuneration.

## 6.2 Royalties and the like

The Service Provider shall not have the benefit, whether directly or indirectly, of any royalty or of any gratuity or commission in respect of any patented or protected article or process used in or for the purposes of the Contract, unless so agreed by the Employer in writing.

### 6.3 Independence

The Service Provider shall refrain from entering into any relationship which could be perceived as compromising his independence of judgement, or that of Subcontractors or Personnel.

#### 7. SERVICE PROVIDER'S PERSONNEL

#### 7.1 General

- 7.1.1 The Service Provider shall employ and provide all qualified and experienced Personnel required to perform the Services.
- 7.1.2 Where required in terms of the Contract, the Service Provider shall provide Key Persons as listed in the Special Conditions of Contract to perform specific duties. If at any time, a particular Key Person cannot be made available, the Service Provider may engage a replacement who is equally or better qualified to perform the stated duty, subject to the Employer's approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- 7.1.3 The Service Provider shall bear all additional costs arising out of or incidental to replacement of Personnel, except where such replacement is otherwise provided for in the Contract.
- 7.1.4 The Service Provider shall take all measures necessary and shall provide all materials and equipment necessary to enable Personnel to perform their duties in an efficient manner.

### 7.2 Provision of Personnel in terms of a Personnel Schedule

7.2.1 The Service Provider shall, where required in terms of the Special Conditions of Contract, provide appropriate Personnel for such time periods as required in terms of the Contract and enter all data pertaining to Personnel including titles, job descriptions, qualifications and estimated periods of engagement on the performance of the Services in the Personnel Schedule.

7.2.2 Where the Service Provider proposes to utilise a person not named in the Personnel Schedule, he shall submit the name, relevant qualifications and experience of the proposed replacement person to the Employer for approval. Should the Employer not object in writing within 10 Days of receipt of such notification, the replacement shall be deemed to have been approved by the Employer.

7.2.3 The Services shall be performed by the Personnel listed in the Personnel Schedule for the periods of time indicated therein. The Service Provider may, subject to the approval of the Employer, make such adjustments to the data provided in terms of Clause 7.2.1 above as may be appropriate to ensure the efficient performance of the Services, provided that the adjustments will not cause payments to exceed any limit placed on the Contract Price.

### 7.2.4 The Service Provider shall, if required in terms of Clause 7.2.1:

- a) forward to the Employer for approval, within 15 Days of the award of the Contract, the Personnel Schedule and a timetable for the placement of Personnel.
- b) inform the Employer of the date of commencement and departure of each member of Personnel during the course of the contract.
- c) submit to the Employer for his approval a timely request for any proposed change to Personnel

### 8. COMMENCEMENT, COMPLETION, MODIFICATION AND TERMINATION

## 8.1 Commencement of Services

The contract shall commence within 30 days after a letter of award has been issued to the Service provider or such date as may be stated in the Special Conditions of Contract.

Standard Services Contract

## 8.2 Contract Expiry

The contract shall expire on the last anniversary month of the contract as stated in the Special Conditions of Contract.

## 8.3 Force Majeure

8.3.1 The failure of a Party to fulfil any of its obligations under the Contract shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Contract insofar as such inability arises from an event of *Force Majeure*, provided that the Party affected by such an event has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures in order to meet the terms and conditions of this Contract, and has informed the other Party as soon as possible about the occurrence of such an event.

8.3.2 During the period of *Force Majeure*, each party shall bear its own cost incurred by him in suspending, delaying and re-activating the performance of the services.

#### 8.4 Termination

- 8.4.1 The Employer may terminate the Contract without prejudice to any right of action or remedy which has accrued or thereafter accrues to the Employer if the Service Provider:
  - (a) does not remedy a failure in the performance of his obligations under the Contract within thirty (30) Days after having been notified thereof, or within any further period as the Employer may have subsequently approved in writing;
  - (b) if the Service Provider becomes insolvent or liquidated or otherwise in the opinion of the Employer is in financial circumstances as to prejudice the performance of the contract
- 8.4.2 The Employer shall give the Service Provider not less than thirty (30) days written notice of any termination made in terms of 8.4.1 (a) or (b)
- 8.4.3 The Service Provider may terminate the Contract, by giving not less than thirty (30) Days written notice to the Employer after the occurrence of any of the following events:

- a) if the Employer fails to pay any monies due to the Service Provider in terms of the Contract and not subject to dispute pursuant to Clause 12 within forty-five (45) Days after receiving written notice from the Service Provider that such payment is overdue;
- b) if the Employer is in material breach of a term of the Contract and fails to rectify such breach within 30 Days of the receipt of written notice requiring him to do so.
- 8.4.4 Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to Clauses 8.4.1 the Employer shall remunerate the Service Provider in terms of the Contract for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination.
- 8.4.5 Should the Service Provider, being an individual or the last surviving principal of a partnership or body corporate, die or be prevented by illness or any other circumstances beyond his control from performing the obligations implied by the Contract, the Contract shall be terminated without prejudice to the accrued rights of either Party against the other.

## 8.5 Modification of Scope of Work

8.5.1 The Employer may increase or decrease areas of performance due to expansion or reduction of areas by giving a Service Provider a notice of 30 days prior to the effective date.

#### 8.6 Rights and liabilities of the Parties

Completion, suspension or termination of the Contract shall not prejudice or affect the accrued rights or liabilities of the Parties.

### 9. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS AND COPYRIGHT

9.1 The Parties shall hold in confidence all confidential information received from each other and not divulge confidential information to any person, including any of its employees, save for employees directly involved with the execution of this agreement.

- 9.2 The Parties shall prevent disclosure of the confidential information, except as may be required by law.
- 9.3 The provisions of this clause shall remain in force for as long as may be necessary to protect either party's interests, irrespective of the date on which this agreement is terminated or cancelled for any reason whatsoever.
- 9.4 All documents relating to this contract shall remain the property of the Employer.

### 10. SUCCESSION AND ASSIGNMENT

10.1Except as defined in Clause 8.4.4 above, each Party binds itself and its partners, successors, executors, administrators, assigns and legal representatives to the other Party and to the other partners, successors, executors, administrators, assigns and legal representatives of the other Party in respect of all obligations and liabilities of the Contract.

10.2 An assignment shall be valid only if it is a written agreement by which the Service Provider transfers his rights and obligations under the Contract, or part thereof, to others.

- 10.3 The Service Provider shall not, without the prior written consent of the Employer, assign the Contract or any part thereof, or any benefit or interest there under, except in the following cases:
  - a) by a charge in favour of the Service Provider's bankers of any monies due or to become due under the Contract; or
  - b) by assignment to the Service Provider's insurers of the Service Provider's right to obtain relief against any other person liable in cases where the insurers have discharged the Service Provider's loss or liability.

10.4 The approval of an assignment by the Employer shall not relieve the Service Provider of his obligations for the part of the Contract already performed or the part not assigned.

10.5 If the Service Provider has assigned his Contract or part thereof without authorization, the Employer may forthwith terminate the Contract and the third party will have no claim against the Employer resulting from such termination.

#### 11. SUBCONTRACTING

11.1 A Service Provider may not subcontract any work which he has the skill and competency to perform, unless otherwise permitted in the Special Conditions of Contract.

11.2 A subcontract, where permitted in terms of the Contract Data, shall be valid only if it is a written agreement by which the Service Provider entrusts performance of a part of the Services to Others.

11.3 The Service Provider shall not subcontract to nor engage a Subcontractor to perform any part of the Services without the prior written authorization of the Employer. The services to be sub-contracted and the identity of the Subcontractor shall be notified to the Employer. The Employer shall, within 14 Days of receipt of the notification and a full motivation why such services are to be subcontracted, notify the Service Provider of his decision, stating reasons, should he withhold such authorization. If the Service Provider enters into a subcontract with a Subcontractor without prior approval, the Employer may forthwith terminate the Contract.

11.4 The Employer shall have no contractual relationships with Subcontractors. However, if a Subcontractor is found by the Employer to be incompetent, the Employer may request the Service Provider either to provide a Subcontractor with qualifications and experience acceptable to the Employer as a replacement, or to resume the performance of the relevant part of the Services himself.

11.5 The Service Provider shall advise the Employer without delay of the variation or termination of any subcontract for performance of all or part of the Services.

11.6 The Service Provider shall be responsible for the acts, defaults and negligence of Subcontractors and their agents or employees in the performance of the Services, as if they were the acts, defaults or negligence of the Service Provider, his agents or employees.

Approval by the Employer of the subcontracting of any part of the Contract or of the engagement by the Service Provider of Subcontractors to perform any part of the Services shall not relieve the Service Provider of any of his obligations under the Contract.

#### 12. RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES

#### 12.1 Settlement

12.1.1 The parties shall negotiate in good faith with a view to settling any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to the Contract and may not initiate any further proceedings until either Party has, by written notice to the other, declared that such negotiations have failed.

12.1.2 Any dispute or claim arising out of or relating to the Contract which cannot be settled between the Parties shall in the first instance be referred by the Parties to either mediation or adjudication as provided for in the Special Conditions of Contract.

## 12.2 Mediation

12.2.1 If the Contract Data does not provide for the dispute resolution by adjudication, not later than 14 days after having advised the other party, in terms of Clause 12.1, that negotiations in regard to a dispute have failed, an aggrieved party may require that the dispute be referred, without legal representation, to mediation by a single mediator. The mediator shall be selected by agreement between the Parties, or, failing such agreement, by the person named for this purpose in the Special Conditions of Contract. The costs of mediation shall be borne equally by the Parties.

12.2.2 The mediator shall convene a hearing of the Parties and may hold separate discussions with any Party and shall assist the Parties in reaching a mutually acceptable settlement of their differences through means of reconciliation, interpretation, clarification, suggestion and advice. The Parties shall record such agreement in writing and thereafter they shall be bound by such agreement.

12.2.3 The mediator is authorized to end the mediation process whenever in his opinion further efforts at mediation would not contribute to a resolution of the dispute by the Parties.

12.2.4 If either Party is dissatisfied with the opinion expressed by the mediator or should the mediation fail, then such Party may require that the dispute be referred to arbitration or litigation in a competent legal civil court, as provided for in the Contract Data.

## 12.3 Adjudication

12.3.1 If the Contract Data does not provide for dispute resolution by mediation, an aggrieved Party may refer the dispute to adjudication. Adjudication shall be in accordance with the latest edition of the separately published CIDB Adjudication Procedures.

12.3.2 The adjudicator shall be appointed in terms of the Adjudicator's Agreement bound in the Construction Industry Board's Adjudication Procedure.

12.3.3 The Adjudicator shall be any person agreed to by the Parties or, failing such agreement, shall be nominated by the person named in the Contract Data. The Adjudicator shall be appointed shall be in accordance with the Adjudicator's Agreement contained in the CIDB Adjudication Procedure.

12.3.4 If a Party is dissatisfied with the decision of the Adjudicator, the Party may give the other Party notice of dissatisfaction within 28 days of the receipt of that decision and refer the dispute to arbitration or litigation in a competent civil court as provided for in the Contract Data. If no notice of dissatisfaction is given within the specified time, the decision shall be final and binding to the Parties.

#### 12.4 Arbitration

12.4.1 Arbitration, where provided for in the Contract Data, shall be by a single arbitrator in accordance with the provisions of the Arbitration Act of 1965 as amended and shall be conducted in accordance with such procedure as may be agreed between the Parties, or failing such agreement, in accordance with the Rules for the Conduct of Arbitrators published by the Association or Arbitrators current at the date the arbitrator is appointed.

12.4.2 The arbitrator shall be mutually agreed upon or, failing agreement, to be nominated by the person named in the Contract Data.

#### 13. LIABILITY

## 13.1 Liability of the Service Provider

13.1.1 The Service Provider shall be liable to the Employer arising out of or in connection with the Contract if a breach of Clause 5.1 is established against him.

13.1.2 The Service Provider shall correct a Defect on becoming aware of it. If the Service Provider does not correct a Defect within a reasonable time stated in a notification and the Defect arose from a failure of the Service Provider to comply with his obligation to provide the Services, the Service Provider shall pay to the Employer the amount which the latter assesses as being the cost of having such Defect corrected by Others.

13.1.3 All persons in a joint venture or consortium shall be jointly and severally liable to the Employer in terms of this Contract and shall carry individually the minimum levels of insurance stated in the Special Conditions of Contract, if any.

#### 13.2 Liability of the Employer

The Employer shall be liable to the Service Provider arising out of or in connection with the Contract if a breach of an obligation of his in terms of the

Contract is established. The Service Provider shall have no separate delictual right of action against the Employer.

# 13.3 Compensation

If it is established that either Party is liable to the other, compensation shall be payable only on the following terms:

- (a) Compensation shall be limited to the amount of reasonably foreseeable loss and damage suffered as a result of the breach.
- (b) In any event, the amount of compensation will be limited to the amount specified in Clause 13.5.

### 13.4 Duration of Liability

Notwithstanding the terms of the Prescription Act No. 68 of 1969 (as amended) or any other applicable statute of limitation neither the Employer nor the Service Provider shall be held liable for any loss or damage resulting from any occurrence unless a claim is formally made within the period stated in the Special Conditions of Contract or, where no such period is stated, within a period of three years from the date of termination or completion of the Contract.

## 13.5 Limit of Compensation

13.5.1 Unless otherwise indicated in the Contract Data, the maximum amount of compensation payable by either Party to the other in respect of liability under the Contract is limited to:

- a) the sum insured in terms of 5.4 in respect of insurable events; and
- b) the sum stated in the Special Conditions of Contract or, where no such amount is stated, to an amount equal to twice the amount of fees payable to the Service Provider under the Contract, excluding reimbursement and expenses for items other than salaries of Personnel, in respect of noninsurable events.

13.5.2 Each Party agrees to waive all claims against the other insofar as the aggregate of compensation which might otherwise be payable exceeds the aforesaid maximum amount payable.

13.5.3 If either Party makes a claim for compensation against the other Party and this is not established, the claimant shall reimburse the other for his reasonable costs incurred as a result of the claim or if proceedings are initiated in terms of Clause 12 for such costs as may be awarded.

### 13.6 Indemnity by the Employer

Unless otherwise indicated in the Contract Data, the Employer shall indemnify the Service Provider against all claims by third parties which arise out of or in connection with the performance of the services save to the extent that such claims do not in the aggregate exceed the limit of compensation in Clause 13.5, if applicable, or are covered by the insurances arranged under Clause 5.4.

### 13.7 Exceptions

- 13.7.1 Clauses 13.5 and 13.6 shall not apply to claims arising from deliberate misconduct.
- 13.7.2 The Service Provider shall have no liability whatsoever for actions, claims, losses or damages occasioned by:
  - a) the Employer omitting to act on any recommendation, or overriding any act, decision or recommendation, of the Service Provider, or requiring the Service Provider to implement a decision or recommendation with which the Service Provider disagrees or on which he expresses a serious reservation; or
  - b) the improper execution of the Service Provider's instructions by agents, employees or independent contractors of the Employer.

#### 14. PAYMENT OF SERVICE PROVIDER

- 14.1 Payment of invoices for local Service Provider s will be effected 30 (thirty) days from the date of the receipt of the correct statement. Invoices/statements should be submitted after the Employer has, in writing, acknowledged receipt of the products supplied. A correct and original monthly statement reflecting the above invoices must be submitted to Umgeni Water.
- 14.2 Payment will be effected directly to the foreign Service Provider subject to SA Reserve Bank approval. Payment to the foreign Service Provider will be effected in the relevant foreign currency by means of telegraphic transfer, 30 (thirty) days after receipt of a correct and original monthly statement, or where statements are not submitted, 45 (forty five) days from receipt of a correct and original invoice. Where statements are not submitted, a certificate should be issued to the Employer reconciling the amount outstanding for the month.
- 14.3 All payments will be made by the Employer to the foreign Service Provider's account. The following particulars of the foreign Service Provider's banking details must be furnished:
- a) account name;
- b) account number;
- c) routing number; and
- d) bank name and country.
- 14.4 The monthly statements, invoices and all supporting documentation must be received before payment can be effected. If the Service Provider's documentation is incomplete or incorrect, payment of these documents will only be effected the month following the month during which the correct documents were received and in the case of foreign contractors, payment will be effected 30 (thirty) days from receipt of a correct statement or 45 (forty five) days from receipt of a correct invoice.

- 14.5For VAT registered contractors, all invoices on the Service Provider's statement must comply with the VAT Act, No. 89 of 1991, or any Act replacing it, before payment can be effected.
  - 14.6 Settlement discounts, if any, agreed upon will be deducted from payments.
  - 14.7 The Employer may set-off any amounts owed by the Service Provider from any amount due.
  - 14.8 Payment will be effected by bank transfer or by cheque, uMngeni uThukela Waters' liability towards the Service Provider will be deemed to be met when the cheque is posted or with Bank Transfer being made. The Service Provider assumes the entire risk for cheques from the moment of posting, or with Bank Transfer, upon transfer being made. The Service Provider will ensure that Employer at all times has the correct banking information of the Service Provider in order to make a bank transfer.
  - 14.9 If the cheque is to be collected, it will be at the Service Provider 's sole risk and risk will pass to the Service Provider upon handing over of the cheque to the proposed Service Provider 's representative
  - 14.10 All original invoices must be forwarded to Employer on a continuous basis throughout the month to the address stated below:

UMNGENI - UTHUKELA WATER

The Creditors Department

P O Box 9

Pietermaritzburg

3200

- 14.11 All payments are provisional and are subject to audit by uMngeni uThukela Water. The Service Provider will preserve its records for such a period as the South African Revenue Services may require, or 5 (five) years from date of payment by uMngeni uThukela Water, whichever is the longer.
- 14.12 All correspondence (relating to matters other than invoices) must reflect the relevant Contract Number and be addressed to the Employer's agent and sent to

P.O.Box 9

Pietermaritzburg,

3200.

## 15. AMOUNTS DUE TO THE EMPLOYER

Amounts due to the Employer shall be paid by the Service Provider within thirty (30) days of receipt by him of the relevant invoices. If the Employer does not receive payment by the due date, he shall be entitled to charge interest on the unpaid amount, which is payable by the Service Provider, at the rate stated in the Special Conditions of Contract, calculated from the due date for payment.

Standard Services Contract